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[bookmark: _GoBack]The Hon. JOHN GRAHAM:  You have made the point, and the point is made in the Government submission, that all the bidders knew about this—the Government knew and the bidders knew—why was this kept from the public? 

Mr STAPLES:  In relation to? 

The Hon. JOHN GRAHAM:  These restrictions, the port commitment deeds that were signed up. Why was not the public aware? You made it clear that everyone knew except for the public. 

Mr STAPLES:  Let us be very clear, the policy around our priority for Port Botany and then Port Kembla was in the public domain. There is no question around that. 

The Hon. JOHN GRAHAM:  Why was the public not allowed to know about the restrictions? 

Mr STAPLES:  I cannot comment on the specifics of the transaction. I am happy to take on notice any issue around that. The critical point is that we are very transparent about our priority for community and industry and the supply chain, which is a critical part of this whole conversation. It is not just the port, it is waterside supply chain and landside supply chain. 

The Hon. JOHN GRAHAM:  The policy might have been clear, but there was a massive attempt to cover the restrictions up. You have provided no reason for that. 

Mr STAPLES:  I do not accept that there is evidence that there has been a massive attempt to cover this up. The bidders were aware in the lease of Port Botany, as well as in Newcastle, that we had conditions in those and those conditions were reflective of what we trying to achieve from a policy outcome. 

The Hon. LYNDA VOLTZ:  That is not what NSW Ports said. NSW Ports said, "NSW Ports is not a party to this deed and was not aware of its existence until recently." 

Mr STAPLES:  I think let us be very clear, what I said was the bidders participating in the bid process were clear about the conditions. 

The Hon. LYNDA VOLTZ:  Only the bidders were clear; NSW Ports did not know? 

Mr STAPLES:  NSW Ports were aware that we had given them an undertaking about prioritising Port Botany as the container development port. That is the commitment we gave to them and we are very transparent around that. That was before the lease of Newcastle port went in. That was when it was in Government ownership. We gave that commitment at that stage. We subsequently backed that down as part of the lease process, as you would expect us to do. 

The Hon. LYNDA VOLTZ:  But, they did not know anything about the pass-through payments, did they? 

Mr STAPLES:  They were aware of the Government's commitment to prioritise Port Botany and provide a mechanism for— 

The Hon. LYNDA VOLTZ:  They were not aware of the pass-through payments, were they? 

Mr STAPLES:  They are aware of the payments as they are described in the deed. 

The Hon. LYNDA VOLTZ:  Well, they are not because they say in their submission they were not. 

The Hon. TREVOR KHAN:  Point of order— 

The CHAIR:  No point of order required. The witness has answered. I will move on to The Greens. 

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN:  Mr Staples, you talked about government support in regard to policy for both Port Botany and Port Kembla, and said that that was quite apparent for some time. Is that what you told the Committee before? Did the Government make that quite clear? 

Mr STAPLES:  Yes, certainly before the transactions occurred, because the question that was put to me was that the conditions in the deeds were not related to policy. The point I made in answering that question was that that, in fact, was the policy position outlined publicly in a draft strategy in 2012.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN:  Yes, and the Government had also made quite clear that it supported the Port of Newcastle being a container terminal as well before 2012, did it not?

Mr STAPLES:  The document I am referring to primarily is the draft freight and port strategy, which was released in 2012. That document made it clear that Port Botany was our number one priority and then— 

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN:  I understand the Port of Newcastle did gain approval from the Government in 2012 to go ahead with the Mayfield precinct concept plan, which was a development proposal for a $1.2 million container terminal on that site. 

Mr STAPLES:  That is a concept plan. I think the broader policy position— 

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN:  I have heard plenty from government reps at various committees that concept plan is pretty much the step taken before final approval is given. 

Mr STAPLES:  We were in the phase in 2012 of policy development, and certainly we would have been listening to what would have been essentially a corporation within the New South Wales Government advocating for certain things to happen on the port facilities. At that stage we would have been prepared to allow organisations like that to develop proposals, but that was by no means a commitment by government that we would develop a container port in Newcastle. I go back to my point that the clear policy came out in the draft 2012 freight and ports plan.
